Ewa Makai Middle School School Community Council BYLAWS

PREAMBLE

Act 51, Session Laws of Hawai`i 2004, known as the "Reinventing Education Act of 2004" in part requires "strengthening community involvement through school community councils."

In accordance with Act 51, the Ewa Makai Middle School Community Council was created to support school improvement and the academic achievement of students through increased community involvement in the school.

ARTICLE I: NAME OF COUNCIL

The name of this Council is the Ewa Makai Middle School Community Council, hereinafter referred to as the SCC.

ARTICLE II: OBJECTIVES

The objectives of the SCC shall be consistent with State Statute, be consistent with policies of the Board of Education, and be aligned with the school's mission and vision.

Section 1.	To advise the school regarding the development, implementation, and evaluation of the Academic Plan and Financial Plan.	
Section 2.	To ensure the school's Academic Plan and Financial Plan are consistent with the educational accountability system.	
Section 3.	To study and review the school's strategic action plan in relation to the educational needs of all students.	
Section 4.	To provide collaborative opportunities for input and consultation.	
Section 5.	To take other actions as required by the Department of Education.	

The principal is responsible for the development of the Academic Plan and Financial Plan and presentation of the plans to the school community and SCC. The SCC recommends revisions to the principal or recommends approval by the Complex Area Superintendent.

The SCC shall have ongoing responsibility to review the implementation of the plan with the principal, assess periodically the effectiveness of the plan and recommend modifications to the plan.

The SCC shall carry out all of the duties and responsibilities assigned to it by the Hawai`i State Department of Education in accordance with the current HIDOE SCC Handbook.

ARTICLE III: MEMBERSHIP AND ELECTION

AKTICLE	III. WEWBERSHIP AND ELECTION
Section 1.	Membership Representation. Ewa Makai Middle School SCC shall be comprised of 10 members. To maintain the balance between school staff and primary stakeholders, membership shall include the principal, 2 teachers, 2 classified staff members, 2 students, 2 parents, and 1 community member.
	All members, with the exception of the principal and the student representative shall be duly elected from their constituent group, or, in the case of community representatives, by the parents.
	Teacher representatives must be members of bargaining unit 5 assigned to Ewa Makai Middle School (EMMS).
	Classified and non-certificated members must be school employees assigned to Ewa Makai Middle School.
	The student members are elected by the student council, must be free of outstanding obligations and disciplinary actions against him/her, and have a minimum 2.0 GPA at the time of election.
	Parent representatives must have children currently attending the school or the primary caregiver(s) with whom the child resides (legal, custodial, grandparent, foster parent).
	Community representatives must have an interest in the success of the students and school (such as alumna or business person in the community) as demonstrated through a strategic educational partnership with EMMS.
Section 2.	Election of Members and Term of Office. There shall be elections at which the SCC members and alternates are elected every two years and shall serve for two years until their successors have been elected and qualified, with the exception of the initial year or the member no longer qualifies for their position due to a break in school in affiliation.
	Initial elections shall include both 1-year and 2-year terms; succeeding elections shall all be for 2-year terms, so that only half of the council will change in any given year.
	The elections will be held no earlier than March 1 st and no later than May 31 st of each year, with elected members to begin their term of office at the first regular meeting in August.
Section 3.	Termination of Membership. The SCC membership should automatically terminate any member who is absent from three (3) consecutive meetings without good cause.
	The SCC may terminate a member for non-compliance with the order of meetings (parliamentary procedure), violating code of conduct, or

	non-compliance with SCC by-laws with a quorum by an affirmative vote of two-thirds of members present.
Section 4.	Vacancy . Any vacancy on the SCC shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term through the appointment of a duly elected alternate. If the composition of the SCC falls below legal requirements and no alternates are available, vacancies for the unexpired term may be filled by a special election or by recommendations from the principal with selection and appointment by the SCC.
Section 5.	Announcement of Elected Members. A public announcement of the election results to the school community will be made. The announcement will be posted on the school's website or in a newsletter.

ARTICLE IV: OFFICERS

Section 1.	The Officers of the SCC shall be a Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary, and such other officers as the SCC may deem necessary. The principal may not be the chairperson.	
Section 2.	Election and Term of Office . The officers of the SCC shall be elected by public or private ballot as decided by a majority vote of the SCC. Elections will be held every year with positions determined by majority vote of the SCC members and shall serve for one year or until each successor has been properly elected.	
Section 3.	. Duties. The duties of the officers shall be:	
	 Chairperson Preside at all meetings and sign letters, plans, reports, and other communications as directed by the SCC. Prepare an agenda for each meeting, provide the agenda to the Secretary, and ensure that the agenda is posted 6 days in advance of each SCC meeting. 	
	 Vice-Chairperson Assume the duties of the Chairperson during his/her absence. Perform such other duties as may be assigned by the Chairperson or by the SCC. Provide oversight and support to the SCC committees. 	
	 Secretary Receive and handle all mail addressed to the SCC. Keep a current roster of SCC members including contact information. Keep the minutes of all meetings including attendance and summary reports. Coordinate the posting of the notices and agendas of public meetings on the school's internet website and in the school's administrative building, as well as the sending to all council members. 	

ARTICLE V: COMMITTEES

Committees shall be created by the SCC as may be required to carry on the work of the Council.

Section 1.	Quorum. The quorum for a committee meeting shall be a majority of its members.	
Section 2.	Selection of committee members. The chairperson and members of committees shall be appointed by the SCC Chair subject to the ratification by the Council.	
Section 3.	Reporting responsibilities. Committee chairs shall present plans of work to the SCC for approval.	
Section 4.	Standing Committees. Standing committees may be created as needed to support the ongoing functioning of the Council. Such committees will be listed in this section of the Bylaws.	

ARTICLE VI: DUTIES OF MEMBERS

Section 1. **The duties of members** shall be to:

- 1. Attend all council meetings on time or inform the secretary of the expected absences in order that an alternate may be seated.
- Serve as an officer or committee member when so appointed or elected, unless unable to fulfill the requisite duties and attend all committee meetings. All council members will serve on at least one committee, if committees are created.
- 3. Actively participate in workshops and training sessions to increase knowledge of the SCC's purpose and functions.
- 4. Be responsive to school community members on matters for which the SCC has responsibility.

ARTICLE VII: MEETINGS

- Section I. **Regular Meetings.** Regular meetings of the SCC will be held at least once per month, with the day and time determined by the members of the SCC at its first meeting of the year.
- Section 2. **Special Meetings.** Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson or by a majority of the SCC members. *A meeting notice and agenda must be posted in a public location at the school and on the school website at least 6 days prior to a special meeting.*

Section 3. **Order of Meetings.** All regular and special meetings of the SCC shall be conducted using parliamentary procedures or an appropriate model of facilitation.

The SCC decision-making process shall be conducted with the intention of reaching consensus. In the event the SCC reaches an impasse which prohibits business from being conducted, the SCC will take a vote with a 50% + 1 majority of those present required for the decision to be approved. In the event of a tie vote, the chairperson casts a second vote to break the tie.

Section 4. **Quorum.** No business can be acted upon in any meeting without a quorum present. A quorum shall consist of 50% plus one (1) of the membership.

ARTICLE VIII: AMENDMENTS

These bylaws may be amended by the SCC. The proposed amendments must have been presented and discussed at one previous regular meeting for which the necessary notice of meeting and agenda were posted. Passage of amendments to the bylaws requires an affirmative vote of at least 2/3 of the members. SIGNED BY:

Signature: Lolita Perez-Ayala pr 28, 2021 14:37 HST) DATE: Apr 28, 2021
DATE: Apr 28, 2021 **Email:** 20277429@k12.hi.us Signature: Kim Sanders

Kim Sanders (Abr 28, 2021 22:09 CDT) Email: kim.sanders@k12.hi.us Signatures of other SCC members: nd Vice-Chair DATE:: Apr 28, 2021 Email: caroline.langlais@k12.hi.us Signature: Daniel L. Simeon
Daniel L. Simeon (Apr 29, 2021 09:31 HST) Rep.___ DATE: Apr 29, 2021 Email: daniel.simeon@k12.hi.us Signature: Erynn M. Tait L Secretary DATE: Apr 29, 2021 Email: erynn.tait@k12.hi.us Email: ianmatthew.eugenio@ewamakai.net

Signature: Rieley-Ed Elkins (Apr 29, 2021 12:29 HST)

Email: rieley-eden.elkins@ewamakai.net

Signature: Jehniferwelsch (Apr 30, 2021 02:07 HST)

Email: jenniferwelsch_ipps@yahoo.com

DATE: Apr 29, 2021

Lep. DATE: Apr 29, 2021

DATE: Apr 30, 2021

DATE: Apr 30, 2021 Signature: Van Eugenio

Signature: Yvonne B. Banogon Yvonne B. Banogon (Apr 30, 2021 08:41 HST) Email: yvonne.banogon@gmail.com	Pp DATE: Apr 30, 2021			
Signature: Final Signature: Email: mikaelacallahan@hotmail.com	/ Rep DATE: May 1, 2021			
Signature: JOHN CLARK JOHN CLARK (May 2, 2021 09:38 HST)	/ Rep DATE: May 2, 2021			
Complex Area Superintendent Sean S. Tajima print name These bylaws have been reviewed and are consistent with the requirements of Act 51. Signature: Sean S. Tajima May 7, 2021 DATE Signature: Sean S. Tajima Email: Sean S. Tajima Email: Sean S. Tajima Email: Sean S. Tajima				

_SCC Bylaws _ (Amended April 2021).docx (1)

Final Audit Report 2021-05-07

Created: 2021-05-07

By: 20277429@k12.hi.us

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAA9LqsZBRA0ivh1kdFXYhrkA3zByA5b7rd

"_SCC Bylaws _ (Amended April 2021).docx (1)" History

Document created by 20277429@k12.hi.us 2021-05-07 - 8:03:37 PM GMT- IP address: 72.234.48.4

Document emailed to Sean S. Tajima (sean.tajima@k12.hi.us) for signature 2021-05-07 - 8:06:57 PM GMT

Email viewed by Sean S. Tajima (sean.tajima@k12.hi.us) 2021-05-07 - 9:37:06 PM GMT- IP address: 72.234.48.60

Document e-signed by Sean S. Tajima (sean.tajima@k12.hi.us)

Signature Date: 2021-05-07 - 9:37:44 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 72.234.48.60

Agreement completed. 2021-05-07 - 9:37:44 PM GMT

